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In the Matter of

Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and
Frederick Carroll III, in his official
capacity as treasurer; Richard J. Heffley;
Heffley and Associates, Inc.; Strategic
Direction.com, Inc.; Republican Party of
Florida and Joel Pate, in his official
capacity as treasurer

BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

MUR 6244

et St N e ) sl =t

CERTIFICATION

I, Darlene Harris, Acting Secretary of the Federal Election Commission,

do hereby certify that on May 27, 2010, the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0

to take the following actions in MUR 6244

1.

Find no reason to believe Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and
Frederick Carroll III, in his official capacity as treasurer,
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or 4410 in this matter.

Find no reason to believe Richard Heffley violated 2 U.S.C.
§§ 441a(a), 441D, or 441d.

Find no reason to believe that Heffley and Associates, Inc.; or
Strategic Direction.com, Inc. violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b.

Find no reason to believe the Republican Party of Florida and
Joel Pate, in his official capacity as treasurer, violated the Act
in this mafter,

Approve the Factual and Legal Analyses, as recommended in
the First General Counsel’s Report dated May 18, 2010.

Approve the appropriate letters.
Close the file.
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Federal Election Commission

MUR 6244
May 27, 2010

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, Walther, and
Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

w
Date

Aftest:

Dorline Kamie

Dariene Harris
Acting Secretary of the Commission
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D ¢ 2463

JUN 1-72010

Elizabeth S. Wessel

Tampa, Florida 33609-3813

RE: MUR 6244

Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate, et al.
Dear Ms. Wessel:

On May 27, 2010, the Federal Election Commission reviewed the allegations in your
complaint dated December 22, 2009, and, on the basis of the information provided in your
complaint, and information provided by the Respondents, made the following findings. First, the
Commission found there is no reason to believe Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and Frederick
Carroll 1T, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or 441b of the Federal Election Campaign
Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). Second, the Commission found there is no reason to
believe Richard J. Heffley violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a), 441b, or 441d of the Act. Third, the
Commission found there is no reason to believe Heffley & Associates, Inc. or Strategic
Directions.com, Inc. violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b of the Act. Finally, the Commission found there is
no reason to believe the Republican Party of IFlorida and Joel Pate, as treasurer, violated the Act
in this matter. Accordingly, on May 27, 2010, the Commission elosed the file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). The Factual and Legal Analyses, which more fully explain
the Commission’s findings, are enelosed.

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)8).

Sincerely,

W a4

Mark Allen
Assistant General Counsel

Enclosures
Factual and Legal Analyses
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and Frederick Carroll 111,
in his official capacity as treasurer

L INTRODUCTION

The complaint alleges that lobbyist Ricbard Ileffley and an unnamed collaborator
launehed a website on October 27, 2009, that attacked U.S. Senate candidate Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponcent of Governor Crist at that time. The eomplaint claims tbat, because
Mr. Heffley is a “common vendor” [or the websitc, http://truthaboutrubio.com, and for Charlie
Crist for U.S. Senate (“Crist Committee™), the website is a coordinatcd communication in
violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (*“the Act”). Further, the
complaint allcgcs that if Mr. Heffley used his lobbying corporation or political consulting group
to pay for thc website, then the coordination would have constituted an illegal corporate
contribution to the Crist Committce. The complaint further allcges that Mr. Heffley is a paid
consultant of the Republican Party of Fiorida and that he shares officc space with the Crist
Committee and the Republican Party of Florida. Because it does not appear that any cosls
associatcd with thc truthaboutrubio.com wcbsite are in-kind contrihutions to the Crist
Committee, the Commission [inds no reason to believe that Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and

Frederick Carroll IIL, in his official capacity as trcasurcr, violaled 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or 441b.
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Charlie Crist {or 11.S. Senate and Frederick Carroll 117,
in his official capacity as treasurer.

Page 2

1L FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The Act limits the amount that may be contributcd to Federal candidates, their authorized
committees, and to other political committees, and prohibils candidates and political committees
from accepting contributions in violation of those limits. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a(f).
The Act also prohibits corporations from making {cderal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Under the Act and the Commission’s regulations, these contributions may take the form
of moncy or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind” contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8)(A)i)and 11 C.F.R. § 100.52(d)(1). Whca a person pays for a communication thal is
coordinated with a candidate or party committee, the communieation is considered an in-kind
contribution from the person to that candidate or party committcc and is suhject to the limits,
prohibitions and reporting requiretncnts of the Act, unless exempted under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
subpart Cor E. See 11 C.I.R. § 109.21(b). One of the specific exemptions contained in subpart
C is uncompensated internet activity by individuals including, for example, “creating, hosting or
maintaining a wcbsite,” which is not included in Lhe dcfinition of “contribution.” 11 CF.R.

§ 100.94.

In general, a payment for a communication is “coordinated” if it is madc in cooperation,
consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of, a candidate, a candidale’s
authorized committce or their agents, or a polilical party committee or its agents. See2 U.S.C.
§ 441a(a)(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission regulations establish a
three-prong test to determine whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
test — payment, content and conduct — must be met for a communication to be deemed

coordinated and, thus, an in-kind contribution. The available information indicates that
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in his official capaeity as treasurer.
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Mr. Hcffley created and paid {or the website, the costs of which were minimal, and that the Crist
committee did not pay the costs. However, it appears that truthaboutrubio.com [ails the content
prong of the test for a coordinatcd communication. To satisfy the content prong, a
communication has to be either an “clectioneering communieation” or a “public
communication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(c)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)<(iii), and this website
appears to be neither.! Thercfore, the content prong is not met, and the truthaboutrubio.com

website cannot be a coordinated communication, as alleged in the complaint.

Further, the Commission’s regulations regarding individual volunteer activity over the
internet appear to cxempt the costs of the websile from the definition of “contribution.” The
available information indicates that Mr. Heffley served as an unpaid blogger who coordinated
with no one on the Crist Comunittee and created the contenl on the website on his own from
previously published materials. The Commission’s internet regulations provide that volunteer

internet activities by an individual or group of individuals, “acting independently or in

! An electioneering communicalion is dcfined as a broadcast, cable or satellitc communication that refers to a clearly
identified federal candidate and is distributed to the relevant elcclorate 30 days before the primary election or

60 days before the general election. 11 CF.R. § 100.29. The website was launched on October 27, 2009, more than
30 days before the primary clection date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadcast, cable, or satelfite communication”
means a communication that is publicly distributed by a television station, radio station, cable tclcvision system, or
satellite system. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. Accordingly, the website is not an electioneering communication.

Nor is http://truthaboutrubio.com a public eommunication. “Public eommunication,” see 11 C.F.R.

§8 109.21(c)(2){4) and 109.37(a)(2)i)-(iii), is dcfined as a communication by means of any broadcast, cable, or
satellite cominunication, newspaper, magazine, ouldoor advertising facility, mass mailing or tclephone bank to the
general publie, or ony other form of general public political advertising, which in turn is defined 1o exclude
communications over the internet except for communications placed for a fee on another person’s websilc.

11 C.F.R. § 100.26. The availahle information docs not suggest that the Crist Committee paid any fees in
connection with truthaboutrubio.com. The response from the Crist Commilice states that Mr. Heffley and his
companies do not reccive any eompensation froin the Crist Committee for any services. Crist Committee Response
al 1. The Crist Committee did nol disclose any payments to Heffley or to any person described in a manner
suggesting the website at issuc, Because tbe available information does not indicate that material was placed on thc
wehsite for a fee, thc website does not appuar to be a public eommunication,
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Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and Frederick Carroll III,
in his official capacity as lrcusurer.
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coordination with any candidate, authorized committee, or political party committec” is not a
contribution by that individual or group of individuals. 11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see also Intemnel
Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 8603 (April 12, 2006) (the
funds cxpendcd by individuals engaging in voluntecr internet activities and bloggers to crcate
and maintain websitcs do not constitute contributions or cxpendimres, and the websites
themselves are nol subject to the Commission’s coordination rules). Therefore, it seems that
Mr. Heffley’s activity falls squarely into the internet exemption and is not an in-kind
contribution to the Christ Committee.” As a resull, thc Commission finds no rcason to believe
that Charlie Crist for U.S. Scnate and Frederick Carroll 111, in his official capacity as treasurer,

violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a() or 441b by accepting excessive or prohibited in-kind contributions.’

2 The coinplaint alleges that Mr. Heffley launched the website with an “undisclosed collaborator.” According to the
eomplaint, Mr. Heffley admitted the existcnee of a collaborator to a reporter bul failed to name him/her. However,
even if the undisclosed collaborator exisis and is 8 member of the Crist Commitlee, the Commission’s reguletions
still appear to exempt the websile activity from the definition of “contribution,” See 11 C.F.R. § 100.94.

3 There are broad allcgations in the complaint that Mr. Hefllcy may have used one or both of his corporations,
Heflley and Assoeiatcs, Inc. and Strategic Direction.ecom, Ine., to pay for http://truthaboutruhio.eom, resulting in
impermissiblc corporate contributions. The available informetion does not suggest any corporate involvement in the
website. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Richard Heffley; Heffley and Associates, Inc.;
and Strategic Direction.com, Inc.

L INTRODUCTION

The complaint alleges that lobbyist Richard HelTley and an unnamecd collaborator
launched a website on Qctober 27, 2009, that attacked U.S. Senate candidate Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponent of Governor Crist at that time. The complaint elaims that, because
Mr. Heffley is a “cominon vendor™ for the website, http://truthaboutrubio.com, and for the Crist
Committec, thc website is a coordinated cominunication in violation of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amcnded (*the Act™). Further, the complaint alleges that if
Mr. Heflley used his lobbying corporation or political consulting group to pay for the wehsite,
then the coordination would have constituted an illegal corporatc contribution to the Crist
Committce. The complaint further alleges that Mr. Hefllcy is a paid consultant of the
Republican Party of Florida and that he shares office space with the Crist Committee and the
Republican Party of Florida. Finally, thc coinplaint alleges that the website lacked a disclaimcr.
Becausc it does not appear thal any costs associated with the truthaboutrubio.com website are
in-kind contributions to the Crist Commiltec, or that the wcebsite is a public communication
requiring a disclaimer, the Commission finds no reason to belicve that Richard Heflley violated

2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a), 441b, or 441d. Further, the Commission finds no rcason to believe Richard
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Heffley’s two companics, Heffley and Associates, Inc. and Strategic Direction.com, Inc.,

violated 2 [J.S.C. § 441b.
1I.  FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

Richard Hcffley created truthaboutrubio.com because he supported Charlic Crist over
Marco Rubio in the upcoming Florida U.S. Senate Republican primary. Heffley Rcsponse at 1.

Heffley describes truthaboutrubio.com as follows:

The content of the website was all articles and links to articles that
have appeared in places around Florida. There was no original
content on the site cxcept for several ‘flash poll’ questions I wrote
to try and get vicwers involved in the sile. Nowhere on the site
was there a call for the election or defeat of Crist or Rubio or any
other candidatc.

Id. Neither the complaint nor the responses included any screcnshots of this website. Heffley
states that thc website was coordinated with no onc on the Crist Commiltee and that he created
the content ol the wcbsite on his own from prcviously published materials. Ileffley Response

at 2.

The Act limits thc amount that may be eontributcd to Federal candidates, their authorized
committees, and to other political committees, and prohibits candidates and political committecs
from acccpting contributions in violation of those limits. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a(f).
The Act also prohibits corporations from making fcderal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Under the Act and the Commission’s regulalions, these contributions may Lake thc form
of money or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind” contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8)(A)(i) and 11 C.F.R. § 100.52(d)(1). When a person pays for a communication that is
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Richard Heflley, Heffley and Associates, Inc.
and Strategic Direction.com, Inc.
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coordinated with a candidate or party commilttcc, the communication is considered an in-kind
coniribution from the person to that candidate or party coinmittee and is subject Lo the Jimits,
prohibitions and reporting requirements of the Act, unless exemptcd under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
suhpart C or E. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(b). Onc of the specific exemptions contained in suhpart
C is uncompensated internet activity by individuals including, for example, “creating, hosting or
maintaining a website,” which is nol included in the definition of “contribution.” 11 CF.R.

§ 100.94.

In gencral, a payment for a communication is “coordinated” if it is made in cooperation,
consultation or concert with, or at the requcst or suggestion of, a4 candidate, a candidate’s
authorized comnmittee or their agents, or a political party committee or its agents. See 2 U.S.C.
§ 441a(a)(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission regulations establish a
threc-prong test to determine whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
tcst — payment, content and conduct — must be mct for a commnnication to be deemed
coordinatcd and, thus, an in-kind contribution. In order to satisfy the payment prong, the
communication nceds to be paid for, in whole or in part, by someonc other than the candidate,
authorized committcc, political party commillec or an agent of the abovc. 11 C.F.R.

§ 109.21(a)(1). This prong appears to be met in this matter because Mr. Hefflcy adinits in his
rcsponsc that he created and paid for the websile, the costs of which were “minimal,” and that
neither Charlic Crist for U.S. Senate (“Crist Committee™) nor the Republican Party of Florida
(“RPOI™) paid the costs, Heffley Response at 1. However, it appcars that truthaboutrubio.com
fails the content prong of the test for a coordinated communication. To satisfy the content prong,

a communication has to be either an “clectioneering communication™ or a “public
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communication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(c)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)-(iii), and this website
appears lo be neither.! Therefore, the content prong is not met, and the truthaboutrubio.com

website cannot be a coordinated communication, as alleged in the complaint.?

Further, the Commission’s rcgulations regarding individual volunteer activity over the
internct appear to exempt the costs of the wcbsite from the definition of “contribution.”
Mr. Hellley's describes his activity as that of “an unpaid blogger who coordinatcd with uo one
on the Crist Commillee and ereated the content of the website on [his] own from previously
puhlished materials.” Heffley Rcsponse at 2. The Commission’s internet regulations provide
that volunteer internet activilies by an individual or group of individuals, “acting independently

or in coordination with any candidate, authorized committee, or political party committee” is not

1 An electioneering communication is defined as a broadcast, cable or satellite communication thal refers (o a
clearly identified federal candidate and is distributed to the relevant electoratce 30 days before the primary clection or
60 days hefore the general election. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. The website was launched on Oclober 27, 2009, more than
30 days before Ihe primary election date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadcast, cable, or satcllite eominunication™
means a comynunication Lhat is publicly distributed by a television station, radio station, cable television system, ot
satellite system. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. Aecordingly, the website is not an electioneering communication.

Nor is http://truthaboutrubio.com a public commurication. *“Public communication,” see 11 C.I'.R.

§§ 109.21(c)(2)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)i)-(iii}, is defined as a communication by mncans of any broadcast, cablc, or
satcllitc eornmunication, newspaper, magazine, outdoor advertising facility, mass mailing or telephone bank to the
general public, or any other form of general publie political advertising, which in turn is defined to exelude
communications over the intcrnet except for communications placed for a fee on another person’s websile.

11 C.F.R. § 100.26. The available information does not suggest that eithcr lhe Crist Comnmittee or the RPOF paid
any fees in connection with truthaboutrubio.com. Mr. Heflley states that neither the Crist Coinmittee nor the RPOF
paid any of the ‘‘very minimal costs for my websitc" and that Heffley himself did thc wark for the website on his
own time and usex! freeware to create the site layout. HelTley Response at 1. Neither the Crist Comumitiee nor the
RPOF disclosed any paymeuts to HefTley or to any person described in a manner suggesting the wehsilc at issue.
Because the available information does not indicate that material was placed on the website for a fee, the website
does not appear to be a public commumication.

2 Because it appears the content prong is not met, there is no need to discuss ot any length the “common vendor™
standard of the eonduct prong. Mr. Heffley, in his response, states that he “did not talk to [Crist] or anyone with his
campaign about this website™ and, thereforc, had no means to use or convey information about the plans or needs of
the candidate or political party. Heffley Response at 1. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(d)(4).
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a contribution by that individual or group of individuals. 11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see also Internet
Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 18603 (April 12, 2006) (the
funds expended by individuals engaging in volunteer internet aclivitics and bloggers to create
and maintain websites do not constitute contributions or expenditures, and the websites
themselves arc not subject to the Commission’s coordination rules). Therefore, it secms that
Mr. Heffley’s activity falls squarely into thc internet exemption and is not an in-kind
contribution to the Christ Committee.” See Heffley Response at 2. As a result, the Commission
finds no reason to believe Lhat Richard Heffley violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) or 441b. Further,
the Commission finds no reason to believe Richard Heffley’s two companies, Heffley and

Associales, Inc. and Strategic Direction.com, Inc., violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b.}

The complaint also stalcs that http://truthaboutrubio.com did not conlain a disclaimer.
See 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). Under the Commission’s regulations, disclaimers are required on:
(1) A “public communication,” as dcfined in 11 C.F.R. § 100.26, made by a polilical committee;
(2) electronic mail of more than 500 substantially similar communications when sent by a
political commitlee; (3) a political committec website available to the general public; and

(4) a “public communieation,” as defined in 11 C.F.R. § 100.26, made by any person that

* The complaint alleges that Mr. Heffley launched the website with an “undisclosed collaborator.” According to the
complaint, Mr. Heffley admittcd the existence of a collaborator to a reporter but failed to name him/her. Nor docs
Mr. Hcffley refer to any collaborator in his response to the complaint. He does statc that he “did not talk to [Crist]
or anyone with his campaign about this website.” Ileffley Response at 1. However, even if the undisclosed
collahorator exists and is a mcmher of the RPOF or even the Crist Committee, the Commission’s regulations still
appear to exempt the wehsiic netivity from the definition of “contribution.” See 1] C.F.R. § 100.94.

* There are broad allcgations in the complaint that Mr, Heffley may havc used one or both of his carporations,
Heffley and Associates, Inc. and Strategic Direction.com, In¢., te pay for http.//truthaboutrubiv.com, resulting in
impermissiblc corporate contributions. Mr. Heffley indicates in his response that he “did the work for the site on
[his] own time and used freeware to create the site layout.” Heffley Response at 1. The available information docs
not supgesl any corporate involvement in the website. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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contains express advocacy, solicits a contribution, or qualifies as an “electioneering
communication” under 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a); see also Intemet
Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 18602 (April 12, 2006).
Becausc http://truthaboutrubio.com is an internet communication and neither RPOF nor the Crist
Committee appcars to have paid for the costs of the website, it appears that a disclaimer is not
required. Therefore, thc Commission finds no rcason to believe that Richard Heffley violated

2US.C. §441d.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate, in
his official capacily as treasurer

L. TINTRODUCTION

The complaint alleges that lohbyist Richard Heffley and an unnamcd collaborator
Jaunched a wehsite on October 27, 2009, that attacked U.S. Senate candidate Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponent ol Governor Crist at that lime. The complaint ¢laims that, because
Mr. HefTley is a “‘common vendor™ [or the website, http://truthaboutrubio.com, and for the Crist
Commitlee, the website is a coordinaled communication in violation of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amendced (“thc Act™). The complaint further alleges that Mr. Hcffley
is a paid consultant of the Republican Party of Florida and (hat he shares office space with the
Crist Committee and the Repuhlican Party of Florida. Becausc il docs not appear that any costs
assoeiated with the truthaboutrubio.com website arc in-kind contributions, the Commission finds
no rcason to helieve thal thc Act was violated by the Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate,

in his official capacity as treasurer.

II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The Act limits the amount that may be contributed to Fedcral candidates, their autborized
committees, and to other political committees, and prohibits candidates and political committees

from accepling contributions in violation of those limils. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a(f).
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The Act also prohibits corporations from making federal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Under the Act and the Commission’s regulations, these contributions may take thc form
of money or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind” contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8)(AXi) and 11 C.F.R. § 100,52(d)(1). When a person pays {or a communication that is
coordinated with a candidate or party cominittee, the comtnunication is considered an in-kind
contribution from the person to that candidate or party comnittee and is subject to the limits,
prohibitions aud reporting requirements of thc Act, unless cxempted under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
subpart Cor E. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(b). One of the specific cxemptions contained in subpart
C is uncompensated internet aclivity by individuals including, for cxample, “crcating, hosting or
maintaining a website,” which is not ineluded in the definition of “contribution.” 11 C.F.R.

§ 100.94.

In general, a payment for a communication is *“‘coordinated” if it is made in cooperation,
consultation or concert with, or at the rcquest or suggestion of, a candidate, a candidate’s
authorized committce or their agents, or a political party committec or its agents. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission regulalions estahlish a
three-prong test to determinc whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
test — payment, content and conduct -— must bc met for a communication Lo bc deemed
eoordinated and, thus, an in-kind eontribution. The available information indicatcs that

Mr. Heffley created and paid for the website, the ¢osts of which were minimal, and that the
Republican Party of Florida did not pay the costs. Howcver, it appcars that truthaboutrubio.com
fails the content prong of the test for a coordinated communication. To satisfy the content prong,

a communication has to be either an “electioneering communication” or a “public
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eommunication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(e)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)-(iii), and this website
appears to be neither.! Therefore, the eontent prong is not met, and the (ruthaboutrubio.eom

website cannot be a coordinated eommunication, as allcged in the eomplaint.

Further, the Commission’s regulations regarding individual volunteer activity over (he
internet appear to exempl the costs of the website from the de(inition of “eontribution.” The
available information indicates that Mr. Heffley served as an unpaid blogger who ereated the
eontent on the website on his own from previously published materials. The Commission’s
internet regulations provide that volunteer intemet activitics by an individual or group of
individuals, “acting independently or in coordination with any candidate, authorized committce,
or political parly committee™ is not a contribution by that individual or group of individuals.

11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see uiso Internet Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed.
Reg. 18589, 18603 (April 12, 2006) (the funds expended by individuals engaging in volunteer
internet activities and bloggers Lo crcate and maintain websites do not constitute contributions or

cxpenditures, and the websites themsclves are not subject to the Commission’s coordination

! An eleclioncering communieation is defined as a broadeast, cable ur satellite communication that refcrs (o a elearly
identified federal eandidatc and is distributed to the relevant cleetorate 30 days before the primary eleetion or

60 days before the general election. |1 C.F.R. § 100.29. The website was launched on October 27, 2009, more than
30 days before the primmary election date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadeast, eable, or satellite coinmunieation”
means a communication that is publicly distributed by a iclevision station, radio station, eablc television systein, or
satellite system. |1 C.F.R. § 100.29. Accordingly, the webxilc is not an electioneering eommunication.

Nor is httpz//truthaboutrubio.com a public communication. “Public communication,” see 11 CF.R.

§§ 109.21(cX2)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2Xi)~(iii), is defined as a communication by means of any broadeast, cable, or
salellite communication, newspaper, magazine, outdoor advertising facility, mass mailing or telephone bank to the
gencral publie, or any other form of general publie political advertising, whieh in turn is defined to exclude
commurieations over the internet except for communieations placed for a fee on anaother person’s website.

11 C.FR. § 100.26. The available information docs not augges that the RPOF paid any fees in connection with
truthaboutrubio.com. The RPOF did not disclosc any payments to Heffley or to any pcrson deseribed in a maaner
suggesting the website at issue. Because the available information does not indicate that matcrial was piaccd on the
website for a fee, the websitc does not appear to be a public communication.
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1 rules).? As a result, the Commission finds no reason (o believe that the Republican Party of

2 Florida and Joc! Pate, in his official capacity as treasurer violated the Act in this maller.?

o

4

st}

*The complaint alleges that Mr. Heffley launched the website with an “undisclosed collaborator.” According to the
complaint, Mr. Heffley adinitted the existence of a collaborator to a reporter but failed to namc him/her. However,
cven if the undisclosed collaborator exists and is a member of the RPOF, the Commission’s regulations still appear
to exempt the website activity from the definition of “contribution.” See || C.F.R. § 100.94.

? There are broad allcgations in the complaint that Mr. Heffley may have used one or both of his corporations,
Heflley and Associates, Inc. and Stratcgie Direetion.com, Ine., to pay for http://truthaboutrubio.com, resulting in
impermissible eorporate contrihutions. The available information does not snggest any corporale involvement in the
website. See 2 U.S.C. § 441h(a).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20463

Daniel Nordby, Esquire

Ausley & McMullen, P.A. -

123 South Calhoun Street JUN 172010
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

RE: MUR 6244
Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate,
ir his official capacity as treasurer

Dear Mr. Nordby:

On December 29, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients, the
Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate, as treasurer, of a complaint alleging violations of
certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Aet of 1971, as amended. On May 27, 2010,
the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the eomplaint, and information
provided by you, that therc is no reason to believe your clients violated the Act in this matter.
Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). The Factual and Legal Analysis, which explains the
Commission's finding(s), is enclosed for your information.

If you have any questions, please contaet April Sands, the attorney assigned to this
matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Wk AU

Mark Allen
Assistant General Counsel

Enclosurc
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Republican Party of Florida and Jocl Pate, in
his oflicial capacity as reasurcr

1. INTRODUCTION

The complaint alleges that lobbyist Richard Heffley and an unnamed collaborator
launched a website on October 27, 2009, that attacked U.S. Senate candidate Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponent of Governor Crist at thal time. The complaint claims that, because
Mr. Heffley is a “common vendor™ for the websile, http://truthaboutrubio.com, and for the Crisl
Committee, the website is a coordinated communication in violation of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). The complaint further alleges that Mr. Heffley
is a paid consultant of the Republican Party of Florida and that he shares office space with the
Crist Committcc and thc Republican Party of Florida. Becausc it does not appear that any costs
associated with the truthaboutrubjo.com website are in-kind contributions, the Commission [inds
no reason to believe that the Act was violated by the Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate,

in bis official capacity as treasurer.

IL FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The Aet limits the amount that inay be contributed to Federal candidates, their authorized
committecs, and to other political committees, and prohibits candidates and political committees

from accepting contributions in violation of those limits. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a({).
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Republican Party of Florida and Joel Pate,
in his official capacity as (reasurer
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The Act also prohibits corporations from making federal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Under the Act and the Commission’s regulations, these contributions inay takc the form
of money or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind” contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8}AXi) and 11 C.F.R. § 100.52(dX1). When a person pays for a communication that is
coordinatcd with a candidate or party committee, the communication is considered an in-kind
contribution from the person to that candidate or party committee and is subject to tbe limits,
prohibitions and reporting requirements of the Aet, unlcss cxempted under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
subpart C or E. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(b). Onc of the specific excmplions contained in subpart
C is uncompensated internel aclivity by individuals including, for example, “creating, hosting or
maintaining a website,” which is not included in the definition of “contribution.” 11 C.F.R.

§ 100.94.

In general, a payment for a communication is “coordinated” if it is tnade in cooperation,
consultation or concert with, or at the rcquest or suggestion of, a candidate, a candidate’s
authorized committce or their agents, or a political party committee or its agents. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission rcgulations establish a
thrce-prong test to determine whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
test — payment, content and conduct — must be met for a communication to be deemed
coordinated and, thus, an in-kind contribution. The available information indicates that

Mr. Heffley creatcd and paid for the websitc, the costs of which werc minimal, and that the
Rcpublican Party of Florida did not pay thc costs. However, it appears that truthaboutrubio.com
fails the content prong of the test for a coordinated communication. To satisfy the content prong,

a communication has to be either an “electioneering communication” or a “public
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communication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(c)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)-(iii}, and this websile
appears to be neither.! Therefore, the content prong is not met, and the truthaboutrubio.com

websile cannot be a coordinated corninunication, as alleged in the eomplaint.

Further, the Commission’s regulations regarding individual voluntcer activity over the
internet appear to exempt the costs of the website from the definition of “contribution.” The
available information indicates that Mr. Heffley served as an unpaid blogger who created the
content on the websitc on his own from previously published materials. The Commission’s
intemnel regulations provide that volunteer intcrnet activities by an individual or group of
individuals, “acting independently or in coordination with any candidatc, authorized committee,
or political party committee” is not a contribution by thal individual or group of individuals.

11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see also Internet Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed.
Reg. 18589, 18603 (April 12, 2006) (the funds expended by individuals engaging in volunteer
internel activilies and bloggers to crcatc and maintain websites do not constitute contributions or

expenditures, and the websiles (hemselves are not subject to the Cominission’s eoordination

' An clectioneering coimmunication is defined as a broadcast, cable or satellite communication that refers (o a clearly
identificd fiederal candidate and is distributed to the relevant electorate 30 days before the primary etection or

60 days before the general election. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. The website was launched on October 27, 2009, more than
30 days before the primary election date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadcast, cahle, or satellite communieation™
ineans a comiunication that is publicly distributed by a television station, radio station, cable television system, or
satclite system. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. Accordingly, the website is not an electioneering communication.

Nor is http:/truthahoutrubhio.com a publie eosnmunication. “Public communication,” see 11 C.F.R.

§§ 109.21(c)2)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)~(iit), is dcfined as a eommunication by means of any broadcast, cable, or
satellite communication, newspaper, magazine, outdoor advertising facilily, inass mailing or telephone bank to the
general public, or any othcr form of general publie political advertising, whieh in turn is defined to exclude
communications over the internet except for communications placed for a fee on another person’s website.

11 CF.R. § 100.26. The available information does not suggest that thc RPOF paid any fees in connection with
truthaboutiubio.com. The RPOF did not disclose any payments to Heffley or to any person described in a inanner
suggesling the website ot issue. Because the available information does not indiealc that material was placed on the
websile for a fee, the website does not appear to be a public communication.
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1 rules).? As a result, thc Commission finds no reason to believe that the Republican Party of

2 Florida and Joel Pale, in his official capacity as treasurer violated the Act in this matter.
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 The complaint alleges that Mr. Heffley launched the wehsite with an “undisclosed collaborator.” According to the
complaint, Mr. HefHley admitted the existence of a collaborator to a reporter but failed to name him/her. However,
even if the undisclosed collaborator cxisty and is @ menber of the RPOF, the Commission’s regulations still appear
to exempt the website activity from the definition of “contribution.” See 11 C.F.R. § 100.94.

3 There are hroad allegations in the complaint that Mr. Hcflley may have used one or both of his corporations,
Ileffley and Associates, Inc. and Strategic Dircction.com, Inc., to pay for http://truthabontrubio.com, resulting in
impermissible corpotnte contribtions. The availuble infonnation does not suggest any corporate involvement in the
website. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D C 20461

William J. McGinley, Esquirc

Patton Boggs LLP -
2550 M Street, NW JUN T 72010
Washington, DC 20007

[ o

g RE: MUR 6244

i Charlie Crist for US Senate and

hn Frederick Carroll I11, in his official
. : capacity as treasurer

e

W

< Dear Mr. McGinley:

i

On December 29, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients, Charlie
Crist for U.S. Senate and Frederick Carroll 111, as treasurer, of a complaint alleging violations o[
certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. On May 27, 2010,
the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the complaint, and information
provided by you, that there is no reason to believe your clients violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or
441b. Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closcd Eaforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18,2003). The Factual and Legal Analysis, which explains the
Commission's finding, is encloscd for your information.

If you have any questions, please contact April Sands, the attorney assigned to this matter

at (202) 694-1650.

Stncerely,

Mark Allen

Assistant General Counsel
Enclosure

Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Charlie Crist for U.S. Scnalc and Frederick Carroll 111,
in his official capacity as lreasurer

L INTRODUCTION

The complaint allcges that lobbyist Richard Heflley and an unnamed collaborator
launched a websitc on Oclober 27, 2009, that atiacked U.S. Senate candidatc Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponent of Governor Crist at that time. The complaint claims that, hecause
Mr. Heflley is a “common vendor™ for the website, http://truthaboutruhio.com, and for Charlic
Crist for U.S. Senate (“Crist Committee™), the website is a coordinated communication in
violation of the Federal Elcction Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). Furthcr, the
complaint alleges that if Mr. Heffley used his lobbying corporation or political consulting group
to pay for thc websitc, then the coordination would have constituted an illegal corporate
coniribution (o the Crist Commitice. The complaint further alleges that Mr. Ieffley is a paid
consultant of the Republiean Party of Florida and that he shares office space with the Crist
Committee and the Republican Party of Florida. Because it does not appear that any costs
associated with the truthahoutrubio.com website are in-kind contributions to the Crist
Committee, the Commission finds no reason to belicve that Charlic Crist for U.S. Scnate and

Fredcerick Carroll 111, in his official capacity as trcasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or 441b.
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[I. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The Act limits the amount that may be contrihuted to Federal candidates, their authorized
committees, and to other political committees, and prohihits candidates and political committees
from accepting contrihutions in violation of those limits. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a(f).
The Act also prohibits corporations from making federal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Under the Act and the Commission’s regulations, these contributions may take the form
of money or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind” contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8)(A)i) and 11 C.F.R. § 100.52(d)(1). When a person pays for a communication that is
coordinated with a candidate or party committee, the communication is considered an in-kind
contribution from the person to that candidate or party committee and is subject to the limits,
prohibitions and reporting requircments of the Aet, unless exempted under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
subpart Cor E. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(b). Onc of the spcceific exemptions containcd in subpart
C is uncompensaled inlemel activily by individuals including, [or example, “creating, hosling or
maintaining a website,” which is not included in the definition of “contribution.” 11 C.F.R.

§ 100.94.

In general, a payment for a communication is “coordinated” if it is made in cooperation,
consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of, a eandidate, a candidate’s
authorizcd eommittee or their apents, or a political party committee or its agents. See 2 U.S.C.
§ 441a(a)}(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission regnlations ¢stablish a
three-prong test to determine whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
test — payment, content and conduct — must be met for a communication to be deemed

coordinated and, thus, an in-kind contribution. The available informalion indicatcs that
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Mr. Heffley created and paid [or the website, the costs of which were minimal, and that the Crist
committce did not pay the costs. However, it appcars that truthaboutrubio.com fails Lhe content
prong of the test for a coordinated communication. To satisfy the content prong, a
connunication has to be either an “electioneering communication” or a “puhlic
communication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(e)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)~(iii), and this website
appears to be neither.'! Therefore, the content prong is not met, and the truthaboutrubio.com

website cannot be a coordinated communicalion, as alleged in the complaint.

Further, thc Commission’s regulations regarding individual volunteer aclivity over the
internet appear to exempt the costs of the website from the definition of “contribution.” The
available information indicates that Mr. Heffley served as an unpaid blogger who coordinated
with no one on the Crist Committee and created the content on the website on his own from
previously published materials. The Commission’s internet regulations provide that volunteer

internel activitics by an individual or group of individuals, “acting independently or in

! An cleetioneering eommunieation is defined as a broadcast, cable or satellite communication that refers 1o a clearly
identified federal candidate and is distributed o the relevant clectorale 30 days before the primary eleetion or

GO days before the general eleetion. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. The website was Jaunched on Octoher 27, 2009, more thau
30 days before the primnary eleetion date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadcast, cable, or satellite communieation™
mcans a communication thal is publiely distributed by n television station, radio station, cable television system, or
satellite system. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. Aecordingly, the website is nol an electioneering communication,

Nor is http://truthaboutrubio.com a public eommunication. “Public communicatiou,” see 11 C.F.R.

§§ 109.21(e}2)-(4) and 109.37(aX2Xi)-(iii), is defined as a communication by mcans of any broadcas, cable, or
salellite communication, newspapet, magazine, outdoor advertising facility, mass mailing or telephone bank to the
gencral publie, or uny other form of general public political advertising, which in turn is defined to exclude
communications over the intcmet cxcepl for communieations placed for & fee on another person’s website.

11 C.F.R. § 100.26, Thc uvailable information does not suggest that the Crist Committee paid any fees in
connection with truthuboutrubiv.com. The response from the Crist Committee states that Mr, 1Ieffley and his
companies do not receive any compensation from the Crist Comnmittee for any services. Crist Committee Response
at |. The Crist Committee did not disclosc any paymeuts to Heffley or to any person described in a manner
suggesting the website at issue, Because the available information does not indieate that material was placed on the
website for a fee, the website docs not appear to he a public eommunication.
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coordination with any candidate, authorized committee, or political party committee” is not a
contribution by that individual or group of individuals. 11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see also Intcrnet
Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 18603 (April 12, 2006) (thc
funds expended by individuals engaging in volunteer internet activities and bloggers to creatc
and 1naintain websites do not constitute contributions or cxpenditures, and the wehsites
themselvcs are not subject to the Commission’s coordination rules). Therefore, it seems that
Mr. Heflley's aetivity falls squarely into the internet exemption and is not an in-kind
contrihution to the Christ Committec.® As a result, the Commission finds no reason to believe
that Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate and Frederick Carroll I1I1, in his official capacity as treasurer,

violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) or 441b by accepling cxcessive or prohibited in-kind contributions.’

? The complaint alleges that Mr. Heffiey Jaunched the wehnilc with an “undisclosed collaborator.” According Lo the
complaint, Mr. Heffley admitted the existence of a collaborator to a yeporter bnt failed to name him/her. However,
even if the undisclosed eollaborator exists und is a member of the Crist Committee, the Commission’s regulations
still appear to exempt the website activily from the definition of “contribution.” See 11 C.F.R. § 100.94.

3 There are broad allegations in the complaint that Mr. Heffley may have used one or both of his corporations,
Heffey and Assoeiates, Inc. and Strategic Direction.com, Inc., to pay for http://truthaboutrubio.eom, resulting in
impermissible corporate contributions. The available information does not suggest any corporate involvement in the
website, See2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C 20463

Richard J. Hefflcy [ JUN T 72010
Tallahasscc, Florida 32312
RE: MUR 6244
Richard J. Heffley
Heffley & Associates, Inc.
Strategic Directions.com, Inc.
Dear Mr. Heflley:

On December 29, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified Hefllcy & Associates,
Ine., Strategic Directions.com, Inc., and you of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections
of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. On May 27, 2010, the Commission
found, on the basis of thc information in the complaint, and information provided by you, that
there is no reason to believe you violated 2 U.S.C, §§ 441a(a), 441b, or 441d and that there is no
reason to believe Heffley & Associates, Ine. or Strategic Dircctions.com, Inc. violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441b. Aecordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documcnts related to the easc will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Poliey Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Filcs,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). The Factual and Legal Analysis, which explains the
Commission's finding(s), is enclosed for your information.

If you havc any questions, piease eontact April Sands, the attorney assigned to this
matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Wk A0

Mark Allen
Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

MUR 6244

RESPONDENTS: Richard Heffley; Heffley and Assoeiates, Inc.;
and Strategie Direction.eom, Inc.

L INTRODUCTION

The complaint alleges that lubbyist Richard Helflcy and an unnamed collaborator
launched a website on October 27, 2009, that attacked U.S. Senate candidate Marco Rubio, the
Republican primary opponent of Governor Crist at that time. The complaint claims that, because
Mr. Heffley is a “common vendor™ for the website, http://truthahoutruhio.com, and for the Crist
Committee, the wehsite is a coordinated communication in violation of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). Further, the complaint alleges that if
Mr. Hefficy used his lobbying corporation or political eonsulting group to pay for thc website,
then the coordination would havc constituted an illcgal corporatc contribution to the Crist
Committee. The complaint [urther alleges thal Mr. Heflley is a paid consullant of the
Republican Party of Florida and that he shares office space with the Crist Committee and the
Republican Party of Florida. Finally, the complaint alleges that the website lacked a disclaimer.
Bcecausc it docs not appcar that any costs associated with the truthaboutrubio.com website are
in-kind contributions to the Crist Committcc, or that the website is a public communication
requiring a disclaimer, the Commission finds no reason to believe that Richard Heffley vialated

2 US.C. §§ 441a(a), 441b, or 441d. Further, the Commission finds no reason to believe Richard
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Heffley’s two companies, [leffley and Associates, Inc. and Sirategic Direction.com, Inc.,

violated 2 U.S.C. § 44 [b.
II.  FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

Richard Heffley created truthaboutrubio.com hecause he supported Charlie Crist over
Marco Rubio in thc upcoming Florida U.S. Senatc Republican primary. Heffley Response at |.

HefTley describes Lruthaboutrubio.com as follows:

The conlent of the websile was all articlcs and links to articles that
have appeared in places around Florida. There was no original
content on the site except for several ‘(lash poll’ questions I wrole
lo lry and gct vicwers involved in the site. Nowhere on the site
was there a call for the election or defeat of Crist or Rubio or any
other candidate.

Id. Neither the complaint nor the responses included any screenshots of this website. Heffley
states that the website was coordinated with no one on the Crist Committee and that he created
the content of the website on his own froin previously puhlished materials. Heffley Response

at 2,

The Act limits the amount that may be contributed to Federal candidates, their authorized
committees, and to other political committces, and prohibits candidates and political committees
from accepting contributions in violation of those limits. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) and 441a(f).
The Act also prohibits corporations from making federal political contributions. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b. Undcr the Act and the Commission’s regulations, these contributions may take the form
of money or “anything of value,” the latter signifying “in-kind”™ contributions. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 431(8)(AX(i) and 1! C.F.R. § 100.52(cd)(1). When a pcrson pays for a communieation that is
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coordinated with a candidate or party committee, the communication is considered an in-kind
contrihution from the person to that candidate or party comimittee and is subject to the limits,
prohibitions and reporting requirements of the Act, unless exempted under 11 C.F.R. part 100,
subpart C or E. See 11 C.F.R, § 109.21(b). One of the specilic exemptions contained in subpart
C is uncompensated internet activity by individuals including, for example, “creating, hosting or
maintaining a website,” which is not included in the definition of “contribution.” 11 C.F.R.

§ 100.94.

In general, a payment for a communication is “eoordinated” if it is made in cooperation,
consuitation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of, a eandidate, a eandidate’s
authorized committee or their agents, or a political party conunittee or its agents. See 2 U.S.C.
§ 441a(a)(7)(B); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21 and 109.37. Commission regulations cstablish a
three-prong test to determine whether a communication is coordinated. All three prongs of the
test — payment, content and eonduct — must be met for a communication lo be deemed
coordinated and, thus, an in-kind contribution. In order to satisfy the payment prong, the
communication needs to be paid for, in whole or in part, by someone other than the candidate,
authorized committee, political party committee or an agent of the above. [ C.F.R.

§ 109.21(a)(1). This prong appears to be met in this matter because Mr. Heffley admits in his
response that he created and paid for the website, the costs of which were “minimal,” and that
neither Charlie Crist for U.S. Senate (“Crist Committee™) nor the Republican Party of F lorida
(“RPOI™) paid the costs. Heflley Response at 1. Howevcr, it appears that truthaboutrubio.com
fails the content prong of tbe tesl for a coordinated communication. To satisfy the content prong,

a communication has 1o be either an “clcctioneering communication™ or a “public
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communication,” see 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.21(c)(1)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)-(i1i), and this websile
appcars to be neither.! Therefore, the content prong is nol met, and Lhe truthaboutrubio.com

website cannot be a coordinated communication, as alleged in the complaint.

Further, the Commission’s regulations regarding individual volunteer activity over the
internet appear to exempt the costs of the wehsite from the definition of “contribution.”
Mr. Heffley’s describes his activity as that of “an unpaid blogger who coordinatcd with no one
on the Crist Committce and crcated the content of the website on |his] own from previously
published materials.” Hellley Response al 2. The Commission’s internet regulations provide
that volunteer internel activities by an individual or group of individuals, “acling independently

or in coordination with any candidate, authorized committee, or political parly committee” is not

! An electioneering communication is defined as a broadcast, cable or satellite coinmunication that refers to a
clearly identified federal candidate and is distributed to the relevant eleclorate 30 days before the primary election or
60 days betore the general election. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. The website was launched on October 27, 2009, more than
30 days before the primary clection date of August 24, 2010. Further, “broadcast, cable, or satellite communicat:on™
means a communication that is publicly distributed Ly a television station, vadio station, cable television system, or
satcllitc syslem. 11 C.F.R. § 100.29. Aecordingly, the websile is not an electioneering coinnunieation.

Nor is htip://truthahoutrubio.com a puhlic communication. “Pnhlic communication,” see 11 C.F.R,

§§ 109.21(cX2)-(4) and 109.37(a)(2)(i)iii), is defined as a communication hy mcans of any broacdcast, cahle, or
satellite communication, newspaper, magazine, outdoor advertising facility, mass mailing or telephone bank to the
general public, or any other form of general public political advertising, which in tumn is defined to exclude
communicalions over Lhe intemet except for communications plaeed for a fee on mother person’s website.

11 C.F.R. § 100.26. The availahle information dves not suggest that cither the Crist Committee or the RPOF paid
any fees in connection with truthaboutrubio.com. Mr. 11effley states that neither the Crist Commitlec nor the RPOF
paid any of the “very minimal costs for my website™ and that licffley himself did the work for the website on his
own time and used freeware (o create the site Jayout. Heffley Response at 1. Neither the Crist Committee nor the
RPOF disclosed any payments to Heffley or to any person described in a manner suggesting the website at issue.
Because the availahle informalion docs not indicate that inaterial was placed on the website for a fee, the website
does not appear Lo be a public communication,

2 Because il appears the contenl prong is not met, there is no need to discuss at any length the “common vendor™
standard of the conduct prong. Mr. Heffley, in his response, states that he “did not talk to [Crist] or anyone with his
campaign about this wchsitc™ and, therefore, had no means to use or convey information about the plans or needs of
the candidate or political party. Heffley Response at 1. See 11 CF.R, § 109.21(dX4).
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a contribution by thal individual or group of individuals. 11 C.F.R. § 100.94; see also Internet
Communications Explanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 18603 (April 12, 2006) (the
funds expended by individuals engaging in voluntcer internet activities and bloggers to create
and maintain websites do not constitule contributions or expenditures, and the websites
tbemselves are not subject to the Commission's coordination rules). Therefore, it sccins that
Mr. Heffley’s activity falls squarely into the internet exemption and is not an in-kind
contribution to the Christ Committee.’ See Heffley Response at 2. As a result, the Commission
finds no reason to believe that Richard Heffley violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(a) or 441b. Further,
the Commission finds no reason to believe Richard Hellley’s two companies, Heffley and

Associates, Inc. and Strategic Direetion.com, Inc., violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b.

The complaint also states that http://truthaboutrubio.com did not contain a disclaimer.
See 2 1).5.C. § 441d(a). Under the Commission’s regulations, disclaimers are required on:
(1) A “public communieation,” as dcfined in 11 C.F.R. § 100.26, made by a political committee;
(2) electronic mail of more than 500 substantially similar communications when sent hy a
political committee; (3) a political committee website available to the general public; and

(4) a “public communication,” as defined in |1 C.F.R. § 100.26, made by any person that

! The complaint alleges that Mr, Heffley launched the website with an “undisclosed collaborator.” Aecording to the
complaint, Mr. 11cffley admitted the existence of a collaborator 1o a reporter but failed to naine himn/her. Nor does
Mr. Heffley refcr to any eollaborator in his response (o the complaint. He does state that he *“did not talk to [Crist]
or anyone with his campaign about this website.” Heffley Response at 1. However, even if the undisclosed
collahorator exists and is a member of the RPOI” or even the Crist Committee, the Commission’s regulations still
appear to exempi the website aclivily fromn the definition of “contribution.” See 1! C.F.R. § 100.94.

“ There are broad allegations in the complaint that Mr. Heffley may have used one or both of his corporations,
Heffley and Associates, Ine. and Strategic Direction.com, Inc., to pay for http:/Aruthaboutrubio.ecom, resulting in
impermissible corporate contributions, Mr. Heflley indicates in his response that he “did the work for the site on
[bis} own time and used freeware to create the site layout.” Heffley Response at 1. The available information does
nol suggest any corporate involvement in the website. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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contains express advocacy, solicits a contribution, or qualifies as an “electioneering
communication” under 11 C.F.R. § 100.29, 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a); see also Internet
Communications Cxplanation and Justification, 71 Fed. Reg. 18589, 18602 (April 12, 2006).
Because http://truthaboutrubio.com is an internct cominunication and neither RPOF nor the Crist
Committec appears to have paid for the eosts of the website, it appears that a disclaimer is not
required. Thereforc, the Commission finds no reason to believe (hat Richard Heffley violated

2U.S.C. §44ld.
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